
1 

  
ARIZONA MUNICIPAL CLERKS’ ASSOCIATION 
MEMBERSHIP/MENTORING COMMITTEE and 

REGION LEADERS MEETING AGENDA 
 

Tuesday, March 22, 2022 
9:00 a.m. 

Microsoft Teams 
Join Teams meeting  

Call Option: (480) 498-8745 
Phone Conference ID: 643 776 110# 

 
Committee Members:   Kara DeArrastia, Chair and Region 5 Leader; Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair and Region 

1 Leader; Annie Meredith, Region 2 Leader; Michelle Stanley, Region 3 Leader; 
Sherry Aguilar, Region 4 Leader; Vanessa Bueras, Region 6 Leader; Cherry Lawson, 
Region 7 Leader; Crystal Hadfield, Regions 8 and 9 Leader; and Carla Reece, Board 
Liaison 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Roll Call  

 
2. MINUTES 

Discuss and consider approval of the minutes from the December 8, 2021 and January 12, 2022 
Membership/Mentoring Committee and Region Leaders meetings. (Minutes attached) 

 
3. REPORTS/ACTIVITIES FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

a. Region 1 – Fatima Fernandez  
b. Region 2 – Annie Meredith 
c. Region 3 – Michelle Stanley 
d. Region 4 – Sherry Aguilar 
e. Region 5 – Kara DeArrastia 
f. Region 6 – Vanessa Bueras  
g. Region 7 – Cherry Lawson  
h. Regions 8 and 9 – Crystal Hadfield 
i. Executive Board – Carla Reece 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Discuss input received from AMCA Regions 5, 6, and 7. (Summary of feedback and AMCA 
Region Map attached) 
 

b. Discuss additions/revisions to Municipal Clerk’s Handbook Table of Contents, ideas for the 
Resource Guide, and next steps in the project. (Draft Table of Contents, “What is a 
Municipal Clerk?” flyer, and AMCA Resource Checklist attached) 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. 2022-2023 AMCA Membership Application and Renewal is now open: Please encourage 
your regional members to renew their membership for July 2022 – June 2023 and solicit 
non-members to consider joining the AMCA. (FY23 AMCA Membership Renewal email 
attached)  
 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/dl/launcher/launcher.html?url=%2F_%23%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%3Ameeting_NjQzYjk0NjAtMTM5Zi00OGY5LTk0MDYtMjA3YzU2NWRkMDI5%40thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522727d541c-0af1-45f6-abf3-34c2cf4483fe%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25226ffeb394-0d93-4ae3-b445-d792277f27d1%2522%257d%26CT%3D1647639657188%26OR%3DOutlook-Body%26CID%3DF2D3FB88-A47C-469F-85B6-E1F1586FE02A%26anon%3Dtrue&type=meetup-join&deeplinkId=8e5b77d7-45ac-49a1-ada4-26038242b367&directDl=true&msLaunch=true&enableMobilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true


2 

b. Registrations are open for: 
• AMCA 2022 Spring Athenian Dialogue – Mon., April 18, 8:30 am-3:30 pm, Goodyear 

Recreation Campus  
• AMCA 2022 Spring Best Practices – Tues., April 19, 8:15 am-3:30 pm, Goodyear 

Recreation Campus 
• 2022 Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC) Institute – June 6-10, 8:00 am-5:00 pm 

(Mon.-Fri.), Arizona Center in Downtown Phoenix  
• 2022 Master Municipal Clerk (MMC) Academy – June 21-23, 2022, 8:00 am-5:00 

pm (Tues.-Thurs.), Arizona Center in Downtown Phoenix  
(Registration emails attached) 

 
c. Applications for AMCA Executive Board Secretary position are due April 18th. (Reminder 

email attached) 
 

d. Volunteers wanted for 2022 Clerks Week Video Montage – video submissions due by April 
8th. (AMCA Listserv email attached) 

 
e. Mark your calendars: AMCA Annual Conference and Elections Workshop will be held in-

person on July 26-28 in Fountain Hills. 
 

f. Scholarship Fundraiser Basket Raffle: Start soliciting ideas for basket themes and gift items 
from your regional members. The Fundraiser will be held virtually again this year in addition 
to in-person at the Annual Conference (more information will be provided by the 
Scholarship Committee following their March 22nd meeting). 
 

6. REMINDERS 
a. Please ask your regional members for suggested topics or questions for the AMCA Facebook 

discussion posts. 
b. Please continue sending photos and screenshots of your regional meetings and activities to 

the Committee Chair. 
c. Submissions for the Summer issue of The Clerk’s Insider newsletter are due by Wednesday, 

June 1st. 
d. Please notify the Committee Chair of new clerk arrivals, clerk departures/retirements, or 

promotions.  
 

7. GOOD OF THE ORDER/COMMENTS, SUGGESTIONS, OR INPUT FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE AND LOCATION 
Tuesday, May 10, 2022, from 9 to 11 a.m., via Microsoft Teams (includes call-in option) 
Minutes Taker:  Vanessa Bueras 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
Kara DeArrastia, Deputy City Clerk – City of Tempe 
2021/2022 Membership/Mentoring Committee Chair 



 

1 | P a g e  

 
 

ARIZONA MUNICIPAL CLERKS’ ASSOCIATION 
MEMBERSHIP/MENTORING AND REGION 

LEADERS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, December 8, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 

 
Committee Members:  Kara DeArrastia, Chair and Region 5 Leader; Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair and 
Region 1 Leader; Annie Meredith, Region 2 Leader; Michelle Stanley, Region 3 Leader; Sherry Aguilar, 
Region 4 Leader; Vanessa Bueras, Region 6 Leader; Cherry Lawson, Region 7 Leader; Crystal Hadfield, 
Regions 8 and 9 Leader; and Carla Reece, Board Liaison 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Roll Call with Introduction of Attendees 

Meeting was called to order by Chair Kara DeArrastia at 9:05 a.m. 
 
Present via Microsoft Teams or Teleconference:  Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair and Region 1 
Leader; Michelle Stanley, Region 3 Leader; Kara DeArrastia, Chair and Region 5 Leader; Crystal 
Hadfield, Regions 8 and 9 Leader; and Carla Reece, Board Liaison. 
 
Absent:  Annie Meredith, Region 2 Leader; Sherry Aguilar, Region 4 Leader; Vanessa Bueras, 
Region 6 Leader; and Cherry Lawson, Region 7 Leader. 
 

2. MINUTES 
Region 1 Leader Fatima Fernandez moved to approve the September 14, 2021 Membership / 
Mentoring Committee and Region Leaders Meeting Minutes; Region 3 Leader Michelle Stanley 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried to approve the minutes of the September 14, 2021 
meeting. 
 

3.  REPORTS/ACTIVITIES FROM EACH REGION LEADER/REPRESENTATIVE 
 

Region 1 
Region 1 Leader Fatima Fernandez reported that her region had met twice this year, once in 
March for a hybrid meeting hosted by Prescott Valley and again in September for an exciting 
meeting hosted by Page.  Fatima commented Page had gone above and beyond to host the 
meeting on a house boat on Lake Powell, followed by various activities which would be featured 
in the AMCA Winter Newsletter. Fatima noted Region 1 was thinking of scheduling a meeting at 
the beginning of the year since the County Elections Department had offered elections training 
for municipalities in Yavapai County. Fatima noted Region 1 planned to meet in March 2022 at a 
winery in Camp Verde for Liquor License training. 
 



 

2 | P a g e  

Region 2 
Chair Kara DeArrastia noted that Region 2 Leader Annie Meredith is in Hawaii on vacation until 
the 14th.  Kara said she had pulled up the posted Agenda for Region 2’s December 1st meeting 
that was held via conference call.  According to the Agenda, the regional members shared 
feedback on the 2021 AMCA Fall Best Practices Training and discussed the upcoming AMCA 
Spring Best Practices and Athenian Dialogue planned for April 2022 and the AMCA Annual 
Conference planned for July 2022.  Members also discussed holding a Region 2 overnight retreat 
in Parker and the Campaign Finance Reporting Schedules.  According to the Agenda, Region 2’s 
next meeting is scheduled for March 1st at 10 a.m. 
 
Region 3 
Region 3 Leader Michelle Stanley reported that her region met December 1, 2021, via Zoom. 
Members discussed the current AMCA Region Map, and the group consensus agreed they would 
like to keep Region 3 the same with like-sized rural municipalities. Michelle noted the group had 
suggested a single topic meeting for better engagement so she was planning a January meeting 
focused on the 2022 Elections where members could ask Tracie Bailey, Payson Town Clerk and 
Region 3 Mentor, questions. 
 
Region 4 
After the Membership/Mentoring meeting, Region 4 Leader Sherry Aguilar sent Chair Kara 
DeArrastia the draft minutes for the Region 4 meeting held on September 29, 2021, and 
included a brief recap as follows:  The September 29th Region 4 meeting was held in 
Goodyear.  Agenda topics included an AMCA Board update by Darcie McCracken, AMCA 
Executive Board Vice President; an overview of the AZLibrary.gov website by Dennis Preisler, 
Ph.D., State Archivist from the Arizona State Library, Archives & Public Records; and a recap of 
the 2021 AMCA Annual Virtual Elections Training by Linda Mendenhall, Election Committee 
Chair.  The next Region 4 meeting will be hosted by the City of Avondale in December 2021. 

 
Region 5 
Chair Kara DeArrastia reported that the Town of Fountain Hills hosted a Region 5 meeting on 
November 10th in the newly-renovated Fountain Hills Community Center and over Zoom.  She 
noted it was nice to see other members in person and virtually and thought the discussions 
were very informative.  Attendees shared their experiences using an agenda management 
system and discussed how they on-boarded and trained their new Board/Commission members.  
Kara said she hopes the next Region 5 meeting in February, hosted by the City of Scottsdale, will 
also use a hybrid in-person/virtual model. 
 
Region 6 
Region 6 Leader Vanessa Bueras was absent. There was no Region 6 update. 
 
Region 7 
Region 7 Leader Cherry Lawson was absent. There was no Region 7 update. 



 

3 | P a g e  

Regions 8 and 9 
Regions 8 and 9 Leader Crystal Hadfield noted that due to family and then personal illness, she 
had not had a chance to schedule a region meeting yet but planned to do so shortly. Crystal 
asked for advice on hosting meetings for both regions and the group consensus recommended 
combining both in one meeting as opposed to hosting separate meetings for each region. Kara 
proposed Crystal ask the members of Regions 8 and 9 if they wanted to combine. 
 
Executive Board 
Board Liaison Carla Reece reported that the AMCA Executive Board had a meeting scheduled for 
December 16, 2021, and noted she would have more of an update following that meeting as 
their last meeting was only to approve minutes. Kara noted due to a conflict she would be 
unable to attend the December 16th Executive Board Meeting and had requested Co-Chair 
Fatima Fernandez present the update on her behalf. 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discuss input received regarding the AMCA region boundaries and participation in regional 

meetings and consider the next steps.  
 
Chair Kara DeArrastia reviewed the Summary of AMCA Region Map Questionnaire 
Responses document included in the agenda packet. Kara noted responses were mixed, but 
that most were appreciative of hybrid meetings in the event of travel restrictions or being 
short staffed. Kara explained the Executive Board was not pressing the issue, but she 
wanted to get a feel for how the membership felt about their respective regions. Regions 8 
and 9 Leader Crystal Hadfield proposed combining Regions 8 and 9. Kara and Region 1 
Leader Fatima Fernandez expressed concern that Region 2 was physically long and 
wondered if it would be better to cut it in half from a traveling standpoint. Region 3 Leader 
Michelle Stanley reported Region 3 was in consensus to keep Region 3 the same and noted 
they were all like-sized municipalities. Fatima suggested including extra funds into the 
annual budget for Region meeting-related travel expenses and scheduling remote meetings 
on Fridays when most municipalities were closed. Kara noted the item could be brought 
back for discussion when more Region Leaders were present. 
 

b. Discuss and consider the following suggestion: 
If supported by the Executive Board, would each Region Leader be interested in giving a 
brief presentation highlighting what their region has done over the fiscal year (including 
photos) at the AMCA Annual Conference in July 2022? 
 
Chair Kara DeArrastia reported she had attended the Fall Best Practices training and noted 
that during the table group break-out session, Kandace French, Carefree Town Clerk, had 
suggested each Region leader give a brief presentation highlighting what their regions had 
done through the fiscal year. Kara explained the Communications Committee created the 
PowerPoint presentation for the AMCA Annual Conference highlighting member 



 

4 | P a g e  

achievements throughout the year and proposed adding Region slides with pictures. Region 
3 Leader Michelle Stanley worried she would not have much to present. Kara suggested it 
could be as simple as a slide of photos from Region Meetings to showcase the combined 
efforts of region leaders. Michelle supported a photo slideshow. 
 

c. Discuss which projects the Committee should work on this fiscal year.   
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia noted members were in multiple committees in addition to being 
Region Leaders, so she did not want to overwhelm the Committee with too many projects. 
Kara listed the proposed projects for the fiscal year which included creating and maintaining 
a current list of non AMCA members in various Arizona associations; developing and 
following a recruitment process; drafting a list of Clerk office topics for a statewide 
Municipal Clerk’s Handbook; exploring the idea for a short promotional AMCA video; and 
developing seasonal/quarterly membership programs for membership retention. Kara noted 
the Board had not assigned any specific projects so the Committee could discuss what they 
were interested in focusing on this fiscal year. She also indicated she would reach out to the 
absent Region Leaders for their input. Region 1 Leader Fatima Fernandez stated the 
Handbook Committee had also discussed a potential statewide manual. Kara noted last year 
Jennifer Pena, Executive Board Treasurer (then Secretary), had discussed creating a 
handbook. Following discussion, the group consensus agreed to draft a Table of Contents 
outline of topics for a potential statewide handbook.  

 
5. REMINDERS 

a. Please ask your regional members for suggested topics or questions for the AMCA Facebook 
discussion posts. 

  
 Chair Kara DeArrastia said she is also a member of the Communications Committee, which  

Michelle Stanley also chairs.  She noted that one of the responsibilities of the Communications  
Committee is to post discussion prompts to the AMCA Facebook group twice a month.  The  
Committee is always looking for new questions or ideas for these discussion posts, so Kara  
suggested that Region Leaders bring this up at their next regional meeting or email this  
request to their regional members. 

 
b. AMCA Clerk Areas of Expertise – Please click here to access the questionnaire and submit 

your areas of expertise. Please email any procedures and/or samples related to your 
selected topics to amcainfo@azleague.org and indicate “Resources spreadsheet” in the 
subject line. 
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia encouraged Region Leaders to share this information about the Clerks 
Areas of Expertise spreadsheet and Resources listing on the AMCA website with their regional 
members if they have not already. 

 

https://www.azclerks.org/index.asp?SEC=02293B54-E44C-4BF6-A0D4-C660FCA96AC1
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MY8HVGT
mailto:amcainfo@azleague.org


 

5 | P a g e  

c. Submissions for the Spring issue of The Clerk’s Insider newsletter are due by Tuesday, March 
1st. 
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia encouraged Region Leaders to solicit article ideas from their regional 
members and to also write up a recap of their regional meetings, including a group photo or 
screenshot, for inclusion in the newsletter.   

 
d. Please notify the Committee Chair of new clerk arrivals, clerk departures/retirements, or 

promotions.  
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia reminded everyone to please let her know of any new clerks in their 
regions, any members who are leaving or retiring, or any members who are being promoted, so 
she can make sure those announcements are highlighted in the AMCA newsletter and Facebook 
group. 
 

6. GOOD OF THE ORDER/COMMENTS, SUGGESTIONS, OR INPUT FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
There were no comments for Good of the Order. 
 

7. NEXT MEETING DATE AND LOCATION 
Tuesday, January 11, 2022, from 9 to 11 a.m., via Microsoft Teams (includes call-in option); 
Minutes-Taker is Cherry Lawson (Annie Meredith can take the minutes if Cherry is unavailable). 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 10:13 a.m. 
 

Michelle Stanley 
Minutes Taker 

 
        
Kara DeArrastia, Deputy City Clerk – City of Tempe 
2021/2022 Membership/Mentoring Committee Chair 



 

1 | P a g e  

 
 

ARIZONA MUNICIPAL CLERKS’ ASSOCIATION 
MEMBERSHIP/MENTORING AND REGION 

LEADERS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, January 12, 2022 

8:30 a.m. 

 
Committee Members:  Kara DeArrastia, Chair and Region 5 Leader; Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair and 
Region 1 Leader; Annie Meredith, Region 2 Leader; Michelle Stanley, Region 3 Leader; Sherry Aguilar, 
Region 4 Leader; Vanessa Bueras, Region 6 Leader; Cherry Lawson, Region 7 Leader; Crystal Hadfield, 
Regions 8 and 9 Leader; and Carla Reece, Board Liaison 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Roll Call with Introduction of Attendees 

Meeting was called to order by Chair Kara DeArrastia at 8:33 a.m. 
 
Present via Microsoft Teams or Teleconference: Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair and Region 1 
Leader; Annie Meredith, Region 2 Leader; Michelle Stanley, Region 3 Leader; Sherry Aguilar, 
Region 4 Leader; Kara DeArrastia, Chair and Region 5 Leader; Crystal Hadfield, Regions 8 and 9 
Leader; and Carla Reece, Board Liaison. 
 
Absent: Vanessa Bueras, Region 6 Leader, and Cherry Lawson, Region 7 Leader. 
 

2. MINUTES 
Chair Kara DeArrastia noted that the December 8, 2021 Membership/Mentoring Committee and 
Region Leaders Meeting Minutes will be scheduled for discussion and approval at the March 22, 
2022 meeting. 
 

3.  REPORTS/ACTIVITIES FROM EACH REGION LEADER/REPRESENTATIVE 
Region 1 
On behalf of Region 1 Leader Fatima Fernandez who was present but having connection issues, 
Chair Kara DeArrastia reported that Region 1 is having a “Table-Talk” with the Yavapai County 
Elections Office to go over any questions they may have before the election.  Fatima noted it 
was nice of the Yavapai County Elections Office to have offered this meeting.  The meeting will 
happen towards the end of January as the details are still being worked out.  The next Region 1 
quarterly meeting will happen sometime in March in Camp Verde at a winery, and they will 
discuss liquor licensing. 
 
Region 2 
Region 2 Leader Annie Meredith reported that her region met on December 1, 2021 via Zoom. 
They discussed the Fall Best Practices, noting that they enjoyed returning to in-person training.  



 

2 | P a g e  

She said other topics discussed were the updates to the records retention schedule and the 
upcoming election cycle.  Each of the cities reported that they have either already started 
handing out candidate packets or that they will be soon, as well as who is utilizing the Equal 
system.  Annie shared that they are trying to schedule an in-person, one-day retreat for their 
region possibly in the spring.  The next Region 2 quarterly meeting will be in March. 
 
Region 3 
Region 3 Leader Michelle Stanley reported that her region met in December and they plan to 
meet again on January 26th.  She said they will be discussing all things elections.  Michelle noted 
that they have a lot of new clerks in their region, and they have been reaching out to their 
Region Mentor.  Kara said she is glad that the new clerks are reaching out to the mentors and 
noted that she is working on sharing more information about that program.  
 
Region 4 
Region 4 Leader Sherry Aguilar reported that her region held their regional meeting yesterday 
via Zoom, hosted by Avondale.  She stated that they discussed the upcoming elections and 
shared their thoughts on the Equal program and re-districting for the cities affected by that 
process.  Sherry said some communities have already began the re-districting update process.  
She noted that several cities are going through City Manager recruiting and hiring due to 
retirements.  They also discussed the process for appointing Council vacancies.  Sherry said in 
Surprise, they had to shut down their passport services for a two-week period due to staffing 
issues related to COVID.  Kara said she has seen in the news how this wave of COVID is causing 
staffing issues and companies are seeing a lot of resignations.  Sherry said Surprise is being 
heavily affected by the current wave of COVID.  Kara said in Tempe, they are starting to see 
meetings and events go from in-person or hybrid back to all-virtual and shared some of the 
issues related to that change.  
 
Region 5 
Kara reported that the City of Scottsdale and Clerk Ben Lane will host the next Region 5 
quarterly meeting, which will be held virtually on Wednesday, March 9th.  She said they initially 
wanted to meet in a hybrid in-person/virtual format but are likely going to meet virtually to be 
safe.  Kara said they try to rotate the meetings through the different municipalities in their 
region so that everyone has an opportunity to host.  She said it is nice to have an in-person 
meeting so they can participate in tours and have lunch or breakfast together. 
 
Region 6 
On behalf of Region 6 Leader Vanessa Bueras who was absent from the meeting, Kara reported 
that Region 6 has a meeting scheduled this month via Zoom and they are hoping to hold an in-
person meeting in Florence in the future.  Vanessa had shared that the Florence Town Clerk’s 
Office was busy with a Trump Rally permitting process so they could not meet in person this 
month. 
 



 

3 | P a g e  

Region 7 
On behalf of Region 7 Leader Cherry Lawson who was absent from the meeting, Kara reported 
that Region 7 did not have an update. 
 
Regions 8 and 9 
Regions 8 and 9 Leader Crystal Hadfield reported that her regions met last month for their first 
meeting.  She said there was not as much participation as she had hoped for, but they were able 
to discuss merging the regions into one.  Crystal said they decided to see how the joint Region 8 
and 9 meetings are going forward before deciding whether to combine their regions on the 
Region Map.  She said they also discussed having an in-person meeting but that it would be 
difficult due to everyone’s busy schedule so they will be meeting via Zoom instead.  She said 
they have reached out to the Arizona Department of Liquor to provide training via Zoom at a 
future region meeting.  Kara shared that she was able to attend the Region 8 and 9 meeting, and 
it was neat to see how those regions were working together.  She said the meeting attendees 
like the idea of continuing a combined region meeting via Zoom for now.  Kara said it is nice that 
they are bringing in liquor training for their regions and not just waiting for it to be offered at an 
AMCA Best Practices session.  
 
Crystal said the Scholarship Committee will be starting their fundraising efforts in the next 
couple of months for the upcoming AMCA Annual Conference.  She noted that the same online 
fundraising platform, Rally Up, would be used again this year.  
 
Executive Board 
Board Liaison Carla Reece reported that the AMCA Executive Board did not have any action 
items in December, so they cancelled the meeting.  She said they are waiting to see what 
everyone wants to do for the Annual Conference.   
 
Carla reported that in Tempe, they are in full election mode for their March election.  She 
shared that they also had candidates using Equal.  Carla explained her Equal experience in 
Tempe and shared some feedback from candidates and voters about using the Equal system.   
 
Carla said the Executive Board will be meeting next week on January 20th.  Sherry said 
nominations will be open soon to fill next year’s Board Secretary position.  Kara said at the last 
Communications Committee meeting, she heard that there should be a member survey coming 
out soon about the Secretary Election process.  Michelle noted the need to look for more ways 
to encourage participation on the Board.  Kara said if she sees anything about that she will share 
it with the group.  Sherry said serving on the Board is a big commitment and there has been 
discussion about having a shorter stint for some Board positions, noting that the total service 
could span five to six years.  It was noted that members who were getting close to retirement 
would likely not apply to serve on the Board since they could not do so as a Retired Member.  
Carla shared some additional changes under consideration by the Board, such as eliminating the 
Treasurer role since the AMCA budgets and financials are handled by the League of Arizona 



 

4 | P a g e  

Cities and Towns.  She also mentioned that Rhonda Geriminsky [AMCA Past President] was 
retiring. 
 

4. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Discuss input received regarding the AMCA region boundaries and participation in regional 

meetings and consider the next steps.  
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia shared the results of the survey that went out to the regions, as provided 
in the agenda packet.  She asked that everyone share this as an agenda topic at their next region 
meetings to obtain feedback from their membership on any changes they would like to see.   
 
Region 1 
Kara asked if Region 1 wants to maintain their boundary or split the northern part from the 
southern part to create a new region.  Region 1 Leader Fatima Fernandez shared that the 
suggestion was made, but that they are happy with the current boundaries.  She said they were 
trying to figure out a way to get the cities that are located far away more involved.  Fatima said 
Prescott Valley budgets for travel expenses so if someone wants to meet in person, they are 
willing to travel to do that.  She said the region members are willing to do whatever they need 
to make it easier for everyone and to help with meeting participation.  

 
Kara said she is trying to get some consensus from each region regarding their Map boundaries.  
She said regions can invite cities from other regions to join their meetings.  Kara asked if there is 
any value for Region 1 to do a horizontal split and if it will isolate those cities.  Fatima asked if it 
is okay for Region 1 to invite clerks from the Valley and other cities to their meetings.  Board 
Liaison Carla Reece said she has attended meetings in the West Valley and Tucson region as 
well.  She said the cross collaboration is good.  Fatima said she appreciated the information.  
Kara said maybe it should be more of an educational piece to let people know that region 
meetings are open to other members outside that region who want to attend.  She gave an 
example of the committee meetings that she attends as a member and as a liaison.  Kara said 
the regions are not entirely set up like the committee structure where a quorum is required to 
hold a meeting.  Fatima said there were questions on who can vote in region meetings and 
how/what constitutes a quorum.  Carla said the AMCA did not have regional bylaws.  She shared 
that when she attends other region meetings, she does not consider herself a voting member.  
Region 4 Leader Sherry Aguilar said they have always had a big turnout for the Region 4 
meetings, so the quorum issue has never been raised, but that it is a good question.  Kara said 
she would never be able to have a Region 5 meeting if that is the case because they have 40-50 
members and maybe get 20 in attendance.  She said it is different for a committee.  Carla said 
when they had quorum issues for her other associations, they would send the topic for an 
electronic vote if they did not have a quorum in the meeting.  Sherry said she does not 
remember that being an issue with Region 4.  Fatima said the Region 1 meetings have an agenda 
and minutes.  She asked if there is no quorum requirement, do they have to take minutes?  
Carla recommended taking notes to provide an update to members.   



 

5 | P a g e  

Sherry said someone trying to get their CMC [Certified Municipal Clerk] designation can use the 
region meeting attendance for their points.  She explained if they have a four-hour region 
meeting, attendees can earn one Experience Point with the submission of meeting minutes with 
their CMC application.  Kara said when regions bring in trainings to their meetings it could be a 
good way to increase participation, if they knew there was an opportunity for CMC or MMC 
[Master Municipal Clerk] points.  Kara shared her experience with attending virtual Athenian 
Dialogues hosted by other states and earning points that way.  Fatima confirmed that Region 1 
is at a consensus point that their boundaries do not need to change on the Region Map, but that 
they will continue to invite members from other areas.  Kara noted a recurring theme where 
members appreciate having the region meetings over Zoom instead of just over the phone.  She 
said it is always nice to be able to hold one or two meetings in-person, if possible. 
  

 Region 2 
Kara said there was discussion about possibly dividing Region 2 horizontally as well.  Region 2 
Leader Annie Meredith shared that Region 2 is very spread out and that has made it hard to 
meet in person but splitting it would not help get those cities to a closer region.  She said they 
are fine keeping the Region 2 boundaries currently drawn.  Annie said since she has been the 
Region 2 Leader, they have conducted their meetings via Zoom, so they are still able to get the 
face-to-face interaction.  She said they are currently working on trying to lock in a date that they 
can meet in person in Parker for a one-day retreat with a tour or activity.  Annie noted that 
adding an educational or training component with something fun is the plan.  She said she also 
informed Region 1 that Region 2 is happy to join one of their meetings and they appreciated the 
invitation. 

  
 Region 3 

Kara shared that the feedback from Region 3 was that they are fine with keeping the boundaries 
as is.  She said they like to hold their meetings at different locations, and they like to have 
specifically requested agenda items, rather than a variety.  Kara asked Region 3 Leader Michelle 
Stanley if she had anything additional to share from Region 3.  Michelle said before COVID they 
met in person with mixed participation and noted that their participation is also mixed over 
Zoom.  She said she unsure what lies ahead in the future for Region 3, but they will continue to 
offer the hybrid in-person/virtual meeting approach.  Michelle noted her region’s interest in 
meeting in person although that has not been realized yet. 

 
 Region 4 

Kara shared the input provided by Sherry for Region 4, as outlined in the agenda packet.  Sherry 
said the feedback she received was that the current Region 4 boundaries work well.  She said 
she was trying to figure out how the AMCA region divisions were created.  She said if multiple 
regions are meeting then that will encourage participation.  Sherry said Region 4 will continue to 
meet virtually due to everyone being affected by COVID.  She said they will just have to handle 
the meetings on a case-by-case basis.  Sherry said when she was researching the AMCA 
Executive Board meeting minutes, it was difficult to tell when the region division decisions were 



 

6 | P a g e  

made and how the 2017 version of the Region Map came to be.  Sherry noted that she was 
unable to find a lot of information on the Region Map.  She said she is unsure how else Region 4 
could be split and noted that they will continue the current meeting format. 

 
 Region 5 

Kara shared the feedback from Region 5.  She said she received some feedback from her region 
to split it into two regions due to the number of municipalities.  She shared an example that 
someone gave of a split option.  Kara said she would not want to divide Region 5 further 
because it is already a small but dense area.  She said Region 5 has a lot of members and they 
have good participation.  Kara noted the difficulty in finding a meeting day and time that works 
for everyone.  She said before she was the Region 5 Leader, she did not think the region was too 
active, so she focused on revamping the region meetings to encourage member engagement.  
She said she will bring it up at their March meeting and noted that they will also continue to 
offer the virtual component as well as meeting in person after the COVID cases start to 
decrease.  She said with the current COVID surge, people are hesitant to meet in person.  She 
suggested that giving more flexibility and opportunities for members to participate, especially 
those in smaller offices, would help increase participation.  Kara suggested offering fun in-
person activities and tours to help entice people to travel to the meeting location.  

 
 Region 6 

Kara shared the feedback from Region 6.  She noted that Jennifer Pena, Apache Junction City 
Clerk, had expressed interest in attending the Region 6 meetings since they are in the same 
county [Pinal County].  Kara said she will explore whether the Region Map should be adjusted to 
include Apache Junction in Region 6 or if Region 6 can just continue to invite Apache Junction to 
their meetings as a guest. 

 
 Region 7 

Kara noted that she did not see any feedback from Region 7, so she would follow up with  
Region 7 Leader Cherry Lawson.  

  
 Regions 8 and 9 

Kara stated that Regions 8 and 9 Leader Crystal Hadfield covered the feedback from the regions 
in her update.  Crystal noted that she did not have any additional feedback to share at this time.   
 
Kara said this is just an information-gathering process to get feedback from the region members 
to make sure the AMCA is keeping up with the needs of the membership.  She said there is no 
real decision deadline for this topic as it is an ongoing discussion.  Kara conveyed the need to 
keep all AMCA members happy and engaged.  Kara shared some other helpful tips she received 
to increase participation in regional meetings.  She said she liked what Prescott Valley does with 
setting a small amount of funds aside for travel to regional quarterly meetings.  Kara asked the 
Committee members if there were any additional suggestions that seem to be working well with 
their regions that they would like to add to the list.  There were no additional comments 



 

7 | P a g e  

received.  Kara informed Carla that she probably would not have anything to present to the 
Executive Board at their meeting next week as far as the Region Map is concerned.  

 
b. Discuss and consider approval of forwarding a request to the Executive Board to include 

photos of regional meetings/activities in the presentation at this year’s AMCA Annual 
Meeting.  
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia said she received feedback from some Committee members that photos 
highlighting the regional meetings and activities would be good to include on a slide or two in 
the presentation for the AMCA Annual Meeting.  She noted that the Annual Meeting 
presentation includes information on members who have earned their CMC [Certified Municipal 
Clerk] and MMC [Master Municipal Clerk], served on a committee, or received a service award.  
She said Michelle Stanley, as the Communications Committee Chair, compiles the annual 
presentation.  Kara asked the group if they are interested in sharing photos for the presentation.  
Annie Meredith said she thinks it is a great way to show that the clerk’s offices were able to 
continue operations during the ongoing COVID pandemic.  Kara said she thinks it would be good 
to showcase all of the regions and how much fun they are having.  Kara noted that she will 
create and submit the Committee request coversheet to the Board for consideration at their 
next meeting.  She noted that she has been gathering photos and will inform the Committee of 
the Board’s decision.  

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Review a draft list of Clerk office topics to form the basis of a statewide Municipal Clerk’s 
Manual or Handbook to assist clerks and deputies in their roles.  Once finalized, the list can 
be sent to the Executive Board so they can decide how to divvy up the subjects among the 
different committees (as a multi-year project). 
 

Chair Kara DeArrastia said an Arizona municipal clerk’s handbook has been expressed as a need 
and noted that it is meant to be a quick go-to guide for new clerks or deputies.  She explained 
that the handbook would provide a brief overview of the duties and responsibilities of the 
municipal clerk’s office and individual offices could use it to also add job functions specific to 
their own municipality.  Kara shared her screen and reviewed the different chapters and 
sections of the handbook in the form of a draft table of contents.  She said she will email the 
document to the group for additional feedback.  She noted that she utilized an old handbook 
and the clerk areas of expertise spreadsheet to give a good framework of what it means to be a 
municipal clerk.  She shared that the chapter on records management would reference the 
Records Management Committee’s manual that they keep updated on the AMCA website, and 
the chapter on elections would reference the manual published and updated by the League of 
Arizona Cities and Towns.  She asked if the group thought there should be additional chapters 
on financial management and human resources (HR) management.  She said there are clerks in 
some municipalities who perform portions of those roles and noted that it might be helpful to 
provide an overview of those functions.  Kara asked the group for their thoughts.  Carla Reece 
said she liked the overview but noted that the portion on appointment and removal would need 



 

8 | P a g e  

to be general due to the differences in municipalities based on charters and specific jurisdiction 
requirements.  Kara said she is planning to include such a disclaimer in the handbook and to also 
note that it is not intended to provide legal advice and that clerks should consult with their 
city/town attorney.  Carla suggested including best practices on performance reviews as a useful 
component for the HR chapter.  Kara said she was considering a basic budget overview for the 
financial management chapter.  Carla added that it would be good to include information on a 
clerk’s obligations as someone who is in charge of public funds.   
 
Fatima Fernandez shared that she has a manual for the deputy clerk position in her office and 
gave a review of its contents.  Kara said there are so many places to get additional information, 
so maybe at the end of the handbook she could list additional resources.  She noted that the 
Welcome Packet for new AMCA members included a resource checklist and shared it on her 
screen for the group to see.  She asked if there were any additional thoughts.  Annie Meredith 
said she thinks it is a great tool and thanked Kara for her work.  Kara noted that she will email 
the document to everyone to get feedback and shared the next steps.  She said it should help 
with all of the retirements and new clerks coming on board.  Sherry Aguilar noted that an 
informational flyer included in the Welcome Packet provides a good overview of the role of the 
clerk [What is a Municipal Clerk?].  Kara replied that she had referenced it for the core 
responsibilities.  Sherry said she likes the draft table of contents and thanked Kara.  Kara shared 
the concerns received with the upkeep and maintaining the handbook.  She said she would not 
want the handbook to be too detailed on laws and noted that its content would be a high-level 
overview.  She noted that if additional roles were added to the clerk’s office in the future, they 
could be included in the handbook.  

 
6. REMINDERS 

a. Please ask your regional members for suggested topics or questions for the AMCA Facebook 
discussion posts. 

  
 Chair Kara DeArrastia said the Communications Committee is always looking for new questions  

or ideas for the AMCA Facebook discussion posts, and asked that Region Leaders bring this up at  
their next regional meeting or via email to their region members. 

 
b. AMCA Clerk Areas of Expertise – Please click here to access the questionnaire and submit 

your areas of expertise. Please email any procedures and/or samples related to your 
selected topics to amcainfo@azleague.org and indicate “Resources spreadsheet” in the 
subject line. 
 

Kara encouraged Region Leaders to share this information about the Clerks Areas of Expertise 
spreadsheet and Resources listing on the AMCA website with their region members if they have 
not already. 

 

https://www.azclerks.org/index.asp?SEC=02293B54-E44C-4BF6-A0D4-C660FCA96AC1
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MY8HVGT
mailto:amcainfo@azleague.org


 

9 | P a g e  

c. Submissions for the Spring issue of The Clerk’s Insider newsletter are due by Tuesday, March 
1st. 
 

Kara encouraged Region Leaders to solicit article ideas from their region members and to also 
write up a recap of their regional meetings, including a group photo or screenshot, for inclusion 
in the newsletter.   

 
d. Please notify the Committee Chair of new clerk arrivals, clerk departures/retirements, or 

promotions.  
 

Kara reminded everyone to please let her know of any new clerks in their regions, any members 
who are leaving or retiring, or any members who are being promoted, so she can make sure 
those announcements are highlighted in the AMCA newsletter and Facebook group. 
 
Fatima Fernandez noted the recent addition of several new clerks in Region 1. 
 
Kara said the winter newsletter was fantastic and had a lot of great information.  She gave an 
overview of the articles that she submitted on the IIMC [International Institute of Municipal 
Clerks] Region 8 Conference and AMCA Fall Best Practices.  She noted that she agreed with 
Annie Meredith about how informative the City of Chandler’s records management 
presentation was at the Fall Best Practices.  
 
Fatima asked how many staff members are working on records in Tempe.  Kara replied that their 
Assistant City Clerk is the lead and the whole team helps out.  She shared what the Tempe 
Clerk’s Office is currently working on with inventorying records.  

 
7. GOOD OF THE ORDER/COMMENTS, SUGGESTIONS, OR INPUT FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

There were no additional comments from the Committee members.  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE AND LOCATION 
Tuesday, March 22, 2022, from 9 to 11 a.m., via Microsoft Teams (includes call-in option) 
Minutes Taker:  Sherry Aguilar 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 10:18 a.m. 
 

Annie Meredith 
Minutes Taker 

 
        
Kara DeArrastia, Deputy City Clerk – City of Tempe 
2021/2022 Membership/Mentoring Committee Chair 



AMCA Region Map and Regional Participation Feedback 

 
 
 

•Region 5 members are satisfied with the boundaries 
currently drawn on the Region Map.

•Apache Junction Clerk is content with remaining in Region 5 
and will continue to attend Region 6 meetings when the 
agenda topics deal with elections or other areas of interest 
to her.

•Support the use of teleconference technology to alleviate 
travel burdens for members.

Region 5 

•Region 6 membership consensus is to include Apache 
Junction within their regional boundaries.

•Region 6 members do not want to split the region between 
Gila County and Pinal County because most of the eastern 
cities are too small to ever be able to coordinate meetings 
for their region. Most of their offices are run by one person, 
the city clerk. 

•Region 6 will continue to meet via Zoom as this meeting 
platform encourages more participation.

Region 6

•Ask members whether the Region 7 boundaries should 
remain as is, or if there are requested changes.

•Holding meetings virtually can be helpful. 
Region 7 



R e g i o n  1

R e g i o n  7

R e g i o n  6

R e g i o n  3

R e g i o n  5

R e g i o n  4

R e g i o n  9

R e g i o n  8

R e g i o n  2

MARICOPA

STAR
VALLEY

DEWEY
- HUMBOLDT

DOUGLASNOGALES

BISBEEPATAGONIA

HUACHUCA CITY

SIERRA
VISTA

TOMBSTONE

BENSON
SAHUARITA

SOUTH TUCSON
WILLCOX

TUCSON

ORO
VALLEY

MARANA

SAN LUIS

SOMERTON

WELLTON

MAMMOTH DUNCAN
YUMA

ELOY

THATCHER

SAFFORD
PIMA

WINKELMAN

CASA
GRANDE

GILA
BEND

COOLIDGE HAYDEN
KEARNYFLORENCE

CLIFTON
QUEEN CREEK

SUPERIOR

CHANDLER

GUADALUPE

GILBERT
MIAMI

GLOBEAPACHE JUNCTION

TEMPE
TOLLESON

AVONDALE
MESA

GOODYEAR

LITCHFIELD
PARK

PARADISE VALLEY
YOUNGTOWN

EL MIRAGE

FOUNTAIN HILLS

GLENDALE
QUARTZSITE

SURPRISE

BUCKEYE

CAREFREE

PHOENIX

SCOTTSDALE

CAVE
CREEK

PEORIAWICKENBURG

EAGAR

PINETOP-
LAKESIDE

PARKER
SPRINGERVILLE

PAYSON

SHOW LOW

TAYLOR ST.
JOHNSSNOWFLAKELAKE

HAVASU
CITY

CAMP
VERDE

PRESCOTT
VALLEY PRESCOTT

COTTONWOOD
JEROME

CLARKDALE

CHINO
VALLEY

SEDONA

HOLBROOK

WINSLOW

FLAGSTAFF

BULLHEAD
CITY

KINGMAN WILLIAMS

PAGE

FREDONIA
COLORADO

CITY

Region Map



?What is the history of municipal clerks?
Along with the tax collector, municipal clerks are the oldest 
public servants in local governments.  Clerks, in one form 
or another, have been around since before the advent of 
writing. They have been known by such titles as “scribes,” 
“reminders,” “remembrancers,” “clerks,” “mayors of the 
palace,” and “clarkes.”

From earliest times, the clerk has been historian, archivist, 
public reader of official documents, keeper of the laws, and 
fee collector, as well as being responsible for publishing 
official documents. Over the years, these duties have 
remained unchanged.

What do municipal clerks do today?
While humble in its beginnings as a profession and 
unchanged in some respects, so diverse is the role of the 
municipal clerk today, that no two clerks’ roles are alike. 
Nevertheless, clerks share eight core responsibilities:

    •  General management
    •  Records management
    •  Elections
    •  Meeting administration
    •  Management of by-laws, articles of incorporation, 
 ordinances or other legal instruments
    •  Human resources management
    •  Financial management
    •  Custody of the official seal and execution of 
 official documents

The municipal clerk’s role goes far beyond the responsibilities 
set out in the eight core responsibilities. Most clerks are 
responsible for maintaining the local body of laws known 
as city codes. With changing technology and laws and 
increased demand for information, clerks are responsible 
for website administration. Another semi-universal responsibility 
is that of managing boards and commissions and providing 
training to board and commission members. Clerks by 
necessity must be on top of changing laws and new laws 
to ensure that their organizations and employees stay in 
compliance with the laws.

Many clerks issue marriage certificates, passports, 
business/sales tax licenses, liquor licenses, off-track betting 
licenses, and bingo licenses. Some clerks are responsible 
for managing their organization’s policies and procedures. 

If that weren’t enough, some clerks are called upon to 
double as finance directors, public information officers, 
and risk managers for their organization and to serve as 
city/town managers.

Where do clerks fit within the hierarchy 
of their municipal organizations?
“Municipal Clerks are the hub of government, the direct link 
between the inhabitants of their community and their government. 
The Clerk is the historian of the community, for the entire recorded 
history of the town (city) and its people is in his or her care.”

International Institute of Municipal Clerks website:  www.iimc.org

More than simply public servants, clerks sit in the center of 
a wheel, the spokes of which are the city/town council, 
city/town manager, the organization, and the public.

Clerks are leaders in their organizations. Their leadership 
is defined by service to the organization, community, and 
elected body. They are the elections officials for the 
community.  Clerks head up their departments, supervise 
personnel, administer records management programs, 
share vital information, participate in administrative 
meetings, exercise quasi-judicial authority, establish 
administrative procedures, set policies, and are a critical 
communications link in a 360 degree circle. Clerks spend 
equal parts of time working with senior administrators, 
mid-level administrators, staff at every level of the organi-
zation, the public, and elected and other officials within 
and outside their organizations.

AMCA

What is a
Municipal Clerk
An Overview of the Municipal Clerk Prof??????????"No other office in municipal service has so many contracts. It serves the mayor, the city council, the city manager 

(when there is one), and all administrative departments without exception. All of them call upon it, almost daily, for some 
service or information. Its work is not spectacular, but it demands versatility, alertness, accuracy, and no end of 
patience. The public does not realize how many loose ends of city administration this office pulls together."

Professor William Bennett Munro (1934)



Are cities and towns required to have 
municipal clerks?
Arizona laws require municipalities to appoint city/town 
clerks: A.R.S. §§ 9-237 and 9-271. Clerks are one of only 
a handful of municipal officials designated by statute.

Do statutes prescribe the duties of 
city/town clerks?
A number of Arizona statutes regulate the duties and 
responsibilities of clerks.

The Arizona Constitution, Article 4, Part 1, Section 1(9) 
states that municipal initiative and referendum petitions 
shall be “addressed” to the “city clerk.”

Likewise, Title 19 of the Arizona Revised Statutes assigns 
the duty of receiving, processing, and verifying initiative, 
recall, and referendum petitions to the clerk. These laws 
further place the responsibility for receiving pro and con 
arguments on municipal clerks, as well as assigning and 
collecting a fee for the arguments and for preparing and 
distributing informational pamphlets to the voters.

Rule 4.1 of the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure Code, 
upheld by Arizona case law, designates municipal clerks 
as one of only three officials authorized to receive service 
of process of summonses and complaints, claims, notices 
of claim, and other special actions against a municipal 
organization.

Title 16 of the Arizona Revised Statutes delegates local 
election activities to the city/ town clerk, thus making the 
clerk the de facto elections official. See also A.R.S. § 
9-821. In addition, Title 16, Chapter 9, charges city/town 
clerks with the responsibility for enforcing campaign 
finance law and receiving campaign finance reports.

Clerks are required to keep the record of all proceedings 
of the elected public body, keep and preserve all books 
and records pertaining to the elected body, post penal 
ordinances, and file and record oaths of office. A number 
of laws require that plat maps, proceedings for the removal 
of commissioners, improvement district plans, maps of 
service areas, legal opinions, statements of posting places, 
notices of public meetings, and official public records be 
filed with the city/town clerk. Clerks are vested with the 
authority to prepare certified copies of official documents 
on behalf of the organization and to maintain custody of 
the official seal. By inference, clerks are entrusted with the 
custody of ordinances and resolutions.

A.R.S. §§ 9-237, 9-271, 9-802, 9-813, 9-821, 19-142, 
36-1405,  38-431.02,  and 38-507.
*Some statutes may not apply to your city or town.

What educational opportunities are 
offered to Arizona municipal clerks?

A multitude of educational opportunities are available to 
Arizona clerks. The annual Clerks’ Academy and Institute 
are offered by Arizona State University in conjunction 
with the Arizona Municipal Clerks’ Association and the 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks.

The Arizona Municipal Clerks Association also offers a 
one-day annual conference in conjunction with the League 
of Arizona Cities and Towns’ election training, at which 
educational training is conducted.  

The League of Arizona Cities and Towns sponsors courses 
throughout the year including elections training, the League 
annual conference, and other sessions. In addition, the 
Election Services Division staff of the Secretary of State’s 
Office offers Election Officer Certification and Training 
classes every two years.

Are professional certifications available 
to municipal clerks?
Two certifications are offered through the International 
Institute of Municipal Clerks:

    •  Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC).
    •  Master Municipal Clerk (MMC).

Clerks must earn experiential and educational credits to obtain 
designation as a certified municipal clerk; and, to maintain it, 
continuing education and professional development are 
necessary. To achieve the designation of master municipal 
clerk, substantial additional documented personal and 
professional development is required.

Finally, to become certified, municipal clerks are required 
to sign an oath that commits to the highest degree of ethics 
both professionally and personally, to be impartial, neutral, 
and to uphold the laws of the land.

For more information about educational opportunities and 
certification, please visit:

 www.azclerks.org
 www.iimc.com 
 www.azleague.org

Prepared by: 

AMCA



 
RESOURCE CHECKLIST 

 

 AMCA 

 www.azclerks.org 

 Sign up for AMCA ListServ 

 To subscribe, visit www.leagueaz.org/amca 

 League of Arizona Cities and Towns 

 www.azleague.org 

 Local Government Directory (can be found online at 
www.leagueaz.org/lgd 

 Guide to Preparing and Adopting Local Laws/Municipal Publication 
Requirements 

 Arizona Revised Statutes:  Titles 9, 16, and 19 

 www.azleg.gov 

 Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records 

 www.azlibrary.gov 

 Arizona Records Management Association (ARMA) 

 www.arma.org 

 International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC) 

 www.iimc.com 

 Secretary of State 

 www.azsos.gov 

 Register for AMCA Institute beginning in May (information available via 
AMCA website at www.azclerks.org) 

 See www.azclerks.org for information regarding the AMCA Annual Business 
Meeting and the League Elections Training in July 

 AMCA Mentoring/Region Leader – see the AMCA committee list 
 
 

 
 
 

http://www.azclerks.org/
http://www.leagueaz.org/amca
http://www.azleague.org/
http://www.leagueaz.org/lgd
http://www.azleg.gov/
http://www.azlibrary.gov/
http://www.arma.org/
http://www.iimc.com/
http://www.azsos.gov/
http://www.azclerks.org/
http://www.azclerks.org/


From: Sandy Morari on behalf of AMCAInfo
To: AMCAInfo
Subject: FY23 AMCA Membership Renewal
Date: Tuesday, March 15, 2022 6:34:48 AM
Attachments: image004_wmz.msg

image005.png

 

 

2022-2023 AMCA
Membership Application and Renewal

 
It is time to renew your membership in the Arizona Municipal Clerks’ Association. 
 

If you are not already a member, please considering joining AMCA.
For more information, click here.

 
Click on the button below to renew your membership and pay online with a credit
card.  Membership is good from July 2022 until June 2023. 
 
 
 
 

Please complete your renewal by July 15, 2022.
 
If you cannot complete your renewal online, please email AMCAInfo@azleague.org
to request an application/renewal form.

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us at AMCAinfo@azleague.org or 602-258-5786.

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:smorari@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/6b7yCERy08I0N9K8FNYwYM?domain=azclerks.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAinfo@azleague.org

image004_wmz

		From

		IT - Postmaster

		To

		DeArrastia; DeArrastia, Kara

		Recipients

		Kara_Dearrastia@tempe.gov



Attachment Notice

The following attachment was removed from the associated email message. 	

 	

File Name	

image004.wmz	

File Size	

2107 Bytes	

 	

Attachment management policies limit the types of attachments that are allowed to pass through the email infrastructure.

Attachments are monitored and audited for security reasons. 	




RENEW
ONLINE





From: Sandy Morari on behalf of AMCAInfo
To: AMCAInfo
Subject: REMINDER: Registration Open for AMCA 2022 Athenian Dialogue and Spring Best Practices
Date: Monday, March 21, 2022 6:17:10 AM
Attachments: image.png

image.png
image.png
amca_spring_training_athenian_22_new.png

 

2022 Spring Athenian Dialogue
Monday, April 18, 2022
8:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.

 
Goodyear Recreation Campus

Multipurpose Room
420 S. Estrella Pkwy
Goodyear, AZ 85338

 
The AMCA Athenian Dialogues explore leadership principles and practices, drawing on the insights contained in a book that all participants have read.
Dialogues focus on helping develop critical thinking skills and increasing leadership ability.
 
This spring’s dialogue will be a discussion and exploration of the ideas in the book, The Girls of Atomic City: The Untold Story of the Women who Helped
Win WWII.
 
REGISTRATION COST:
 
Early Bird Registration (before March 18, 2022):                
 
AMCA Members only    $85                                                              
 
Registration After March 18, 2022
 
AMCA Members   $95
Non-members      $100
 
To learn more about this year’s dialogue and to register, click here.

 
 

AMCA 2022 Spring Best Practice 
Tuesday, April 19, 2022

8:15 am -3:30 pm
 

Goodyear Recreation Campus
Multipurpose Room
420 S. Estrella Pkwy
Goodyear, AZ 85338

Tentative Agenda:

 

8:15 a.m. – 8:50 a.m.           Registration (continental breakfast will be available)

mailto:smorari@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/YDeLCXDPrLhDYRpEu6ebZQ?domain=az-lact.civicplus.com













Goodyear ion Campus | Multipurpose Room
St wy., Goodyear, AZ 85338
i o |






8:50 a.m. – 9:00 a.m.           Welcome

9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.         Open Meeting Law

10:00 a.m. – 10:15 a.m.       Break

10:15 a.m. – 11:45 a.m.       Ethics Discussion

11:45 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.         Lunch

1:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.           Leadership Discussion

2:00 p.m. – 2:15 p.m.           Break

2:15 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.           Campaign Finance Complaint Process

3:30 p.m.                                Closing Remarks

 

 

Registration Cost:

 

$45 for AMCA members

$55 for non-AMCA members

 

To register, click here.

 

 

If you have any questions, please email amcainfo@azleague.org or call 602-258-5786. 
 

 

 

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/AQRlCYEZyWfpxqGVHGZKJo?domain=cvent.me
mailto:amcainfo@azleague.org


From: Sandy Morari on behalf of AMCAInfo
To: AMCAInfo
Subject: Register Now! CMC Institute and MMC Academy
Date: Friday, February 25, 2022 8:04:18 AM

 
 

Register Now . . .
 

Registration is now open for the 2022 Institute (CMC) and Academy (MMC) programs.
 

Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC) Institute

June 6-10, 2022- Downtown Phoenix
Program Information and Registration

Institute registration fee: $350 (out of state: $400)

Master Municipal Clerk Academy

June 21-23, 2022 – Downtown Phoenix

Program Information and Registration

Academy registration fee: $275 (out of state: $300)
 

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us at AMCAinfo@azleague.org.

 
 

 
 

mailto:smorari@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/dVzZCDkxQ1FJWPLjsWlyCH?domain=ramseyexecutive.asu.edu
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/zRQDCERy08I0zP81twoEuH?domain=ramseyexecutive.asu.edu
mailto:AMCAinfo@azleague.org


From: Sandy Morari on behalf of AMCAInfo
To: AMCAInfo
Subject: 2022 Call for Applications - AMCA Board Secretary
Date: Wednesday, March 16, 2022 6:35:45 AM

Don’t forget . . . applications are due April 18, 2022!
 

 
Applications for the AMCA Executive Board Secretary

are due April 18th! 
 

Now is your chance to make a difference in the Municipal Clerk community!  Now is the time to see your
ideas come to life!  The AMCA Executive Board plays an essential role in strengthening the Municipal Clerk
profession and the AMCA organization.  It is not possible for our professional association to be what it is
without the strong support and volunteer efforts of our members. Apply to be the next Executive Board
Secretary!
 
Concerned you won’t have time to dedicate to the Executive Board?  Your fellow Board members are
there for you every step of the way.
 
APPLY:
·        To make a difference.

·        To accomplish the goals of the Association and the Executive Board.
·        To further the professionalism of the AMCA.
·        To grow professionally and personally.
·        To network with other Municipal Clerks.
·        To earn points toward your CMC or MMC designations.
Whatever YOUR reason – Apply and make a difference!
 
For more information or to apply for the AMCA Executive Board Secretary, click HERE.

 
Email completed applications to AMCA Board, azclerksboard@gmail.com.

 
 
 

 
 

mailto:smorari@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
mailto:AMCAInfo@azleague.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/6LIiCDkxQ1FJklqnS5trcW?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
mailto:azclerksboard@gmail.com


From: AMCA Listserv <amca@list.azclerks.org> 
Date: March 7, 2022 at 9:35:21 AM MST 
To: AMCA Listserv <amca@list.azclerks.org> 
Subject: [amca] Volunteers wanted for 2022 Clerks Week Video 
Reply-To: "Stanley, Harryette" <hstanley@paysonaz.gov> 

Volunteers Wanted for 2022 Clerks Week Video Montage 
The League of Cities and Towns has offered to help us make a 2022 video montage to promote Clerks 
Week (May 1st-7th) by showcasing the myriad of responsibilities Clerks have! We are looking for 
volunteers willing to submit a short 10-30 second video of themselves and/or co-workers (we are happy 
to have “volun-tasked” staff as well) being a Clerk. The goal is to have each person doing a different task 
and when compiled together shows a snapshot of what all Clerks do!  
 
Video parameters: 10sec-30sec spot; can be taken with a phone, no sound or audio; can be staged 
(there are no Oscars, but you will be immortalized on video); all videos due by April 8th.  
Tasks we are looking for:  

• Candidate packets & counting 
• Minute Taking at meetings 
• Council Meetings 
• Notarizing documents 
• Public Records Requests 
• Filing 
• Agendas for Council and/or Committees 
• Business License 
• Liquor License 
• Records Management 
• Town Historian 
• Claims against the City 
• Boards and Commissions 
• Passports 
• Training 
• Customer Service with the public 
• “Other Tasks” (the unexpected stuff) 

If you are interested in submitting a video, please email me directly and I will share the upload link. 
Videos are due by April 8th. Also, please let me know which specific task you are volunteering for, or if 
you are open to anything. The goal is to have different people doing different tasks.  

Sincerely,  

H. Michelle Stanley 
Deputy Town Clerk | Town of Payson 
303 N. Beeline Hwy, Payson, AZ 85541 
(928) 474-5242 ext. 5001 

 
 

mailto:amca@list.azclerks.org
mailto:amca@list.azclerks.org
mailto:hstanley@paysonaz.gov
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/cTQ3C2kX7xFZY3Dgu2qZrT?domain=google.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/cTQ3C2kX7xFZY3Dgu2qZrT?domain=google.com

	March 22, 2022 Agenda
	2. 12-8-21_Minutes_Draft
	2. 01-12-22_Minutes_Draft
	4a. Feedback from Regions 5-7
	4a. AMCA Region Map
	4b. What is a Municipal Clerk
	4b. AMCA_Resource_Checklist
	5a. FY23 AMCA Membership Renewal
	5b. Spring Athenian Dialogue and Best Practices
	5b. CMC Institute and MMC Academy
	5c. AMCA Board Secretary Call for Applications
	5d. 2022 Clerks Week Video Montage



